
 
 

HUDSON SCHOOL COMMITTEE 

October 22, 2019 

155 Apsley Street – Administration Building 

7:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order 

 

II. Approval of Minutes 

 Regular Meeting: October 8, 2019 

            

III. Public Participation: 
 

In order to efficiently conduct the business of the School Committee and provide for public input, 

please keep in mind the following: 

 Speakers should address their issues and concerns, and avoid 

personal attacks; 

 Persons addressing the Committee should refrain from reading long statements. If such 

statements are considered necessary for background material, then these statements should 

be furnished to the Committee prior to the meeting; and 

 Persons addressing the Committee should limit their statements to approximately two 

minutes. 

 
IV.   Reports and Presentations 

 

a) Report of the Superintendent: School Improvement Plans 

b)   Subcommittee Reports  

 Budget Subcommittee (if any) 

 Policy Subcommittee (if any) 

 Strategic Goals Subcommittee (if any) 

 Superintendent’s Evaluation Subcommittee(if any) 
c)   Student Presentation (if any) 

 

V. Matters for Discussion: 

a) Old Business 

b) New Business 

1. Staff and Parent Listening Sessions 

2. Leadership Team Communication Plan 

VI. Matters for Action: 

a) Old Business 

1. Approval of 2019 MASC Resolutions 

b) New Business 

1. Approval of Contract with New England School Services, Inc. in the 

amount of $13,660.00 for contracted services for removal and 

replacement of outside double- door, frame, and transom at the Farley 

Elementary School. 

 



 
 

 

2. Approval of Contract with the Madison Corporation – DBAWarren 

Security  in the amount of  $44,500  to upgrade the Door Access Control 

Security System at Hudson High School.  

 

3. Approval of Contract with Signet Security Systems  Inc. in the amount of 

$19,250.00 for equipment and installation of  additional security cameras 

at Quinn Middle School. 

 

4. Approval of FY20 Mass Cultural Grant in the amount of $250.00 for 

Forest Avenue Elementary and $250.00 for Quinn Middle School. 

 

VII.    

VIII. 

IX. 

Items of Interest to the School Committee 

 
Executive Session 

 

Adjournment

      The Agenda reflects topics that the Chairperson reasonably anticipates will be discussed. 
 

 
 
 
 

 



Approval of Minutes 
 

Regular Meeting: October 8, 2019 
 

 



Not Approved 

1 
 

 
Hudson School Committee 

Open Session Minutes  
 

Meeting Date: October 8, 2019 Location:    155 Aspley Street 
 
 
Members present:   Glenn Maston, Steven Smith, Adam Tracy, Nina Ryan, Matthew McDowell, 

and Michele Tousignant Dufour,  
 
Members absent:   Rebecca Weksner 
      
Others present:       Dr. Marco C. Rodrigues, Superintendent 
                               Annamarie O’Donnell, Recording Secretary 
                               Caitlin Reagan, Student Representative  
    
       

    I. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Call the Meeting to Order:   7:01  p.m. 

The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair, Glenn Maston. 
 

II. 
 
 
 
 
 
III. 
 
IV. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approval of Minutes:                                                    
 
Regular Meeting:   September 24, 2019 
A motion to approve the revised minutes of September 24, 2019 was made by Ms. 
Tousignant Dufour and seconded by Mr. Tracy. On a vote of 6-0, the motion passed.     
 
Public Participation: 
none 
Reports and Presentations 
 
Report of the Superintendent:   District Accountability, Data Report & MCAS Results 
 
Dr. Rodrigues described the new accountability system, now in its second year. He stated 
that it was important to remember that the achievement results reflect a new cohort of 
students. This was the first year of computer based testing in Grade 3. This was the first year 
of the next generation test for Grade 10 ELA and Math, therefore comparisons may not be 
made to last year’s results. There is a new categorization of schools and districts, previously 
there were two categories and now there are four categories each having a band of 25 
percentage points. The performance toward target is calculated on two years of data ( 2018 
and 2019). The District and each of our schools have been classified as “Not Requiring 
Assistance or Intervention”. 
 
Dr. Rodrigues  presented the results with the following highlights: 
 
District Accountability Report 
Accountibility Results for 2018 and 2019 were presented. The cumulative of the two years 
based on the formula was 47%. This is a broad overview and uses indicators such as 

 



Not Approved 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

attendance, Advanced Placement courses taken, and high school completion rates. In each 
area if there is a decline, a score of 0 is given, no change a score of 1, improvement a score 
of 2, meeting target a score of 3, and exceeding target a score of 4. 
 
Discussion ensued about the extended engagement rate and 4 and 5 year cohort graduation 
rates. Mr. Tracy asked if there has been clarification from the state on how absenteeism is 
tracked. Dr. Rodrigues stated that we only provide excused and unexcused. He went on to 
say that anything over 10% (18 days) is characterized as chronic. The district has a 
significant number of students with 18+absences. We are working through SIMS to ensure 
that the state gets the correct data. 
 
Transitions Threshold 
We have examined students close to moving from one level of achievement to the next. 
There were 205 students in ELA, 217 students in Math, and 23 students in Science that 
scored in the range of 461-469. This falls into the not meeting expectations range. With just 
a few more points, these scores would have been bumped into the partially meeting 
expectations range.  Dr. Rodrigues stated that these are pockets that need to be looked at to 
find the main reasons these students did not achieve the next level. 
 
Mr. Smith asked if we look at groups low in the range to make sure they are not sliding back. 
Dr. Rodrigues stated that the state prepares a report for us on the bottom quartile. We will 
be using this to digest the data properly so we know who these students are and what their 
needs are.  
 
 
2019 MCAS Results Grades 3-8  
Dr. Rodrigues presented bar graphs comparing three years of data for grades 3-8. He 
reported that there were marginal changes in ELA and Math.  
 
Subgoups Analysis 
For students with disabilities, there was a slight improvement in ELA, but a decline in 
Mathematics. 
For English Language Learners, there was some forward movement in ELA, and decline in 
Mathematics for English Language Learners. 
For the High Needs group, which consists of English Language Learners, students with 
disabilities, and low-income students combined, there was some forward movement in both 
ELA and Mathematics. 
 
2019 MCAS results grade 10 
Dr. Rodrigues stated that this year cannot be compared to last year because these are results 
for two different tests. He went on to say there were consistent levels of achievement. 
For students with disabilities and the high needs subgroup the results were similar. English 
Learner results were not reported because there were less than 20 students. 
 
This was the first year of implementation of the next generation test in Science for Grades 
5-8, so comparisons cannot be made between 2018 and 2019. 
 



Not Approved 

3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Grade 10 science is still using the legacy test and results are comparable to last year. 
 
For students with disabilities there was a decline in science particularly in Grade 10. 
For the high needs group there was decline in science scores in Grade 10.  
 
Mr. Tracy asked how much the data tells us about the program versus the students when you 
have different cohorts of students moving through. Dr. Rodrigues stated that our approach 
is to identify the gaps in the standards. If there is a pattern of standards that are areas of 
difficulty, we need to dissect and understand the reasons why.  
 
Discussion ensued about the difficulty of digesting the data because we do not have the 
history since it is a new test.  Dr. Rodrigues stated that dissecting last year’s data allows us 
to inform this year’s practices. 
 
Mr. Smith asked if we use other districts’ data to inform changes we may make. Dr. 
Rodrigues stated that we do not go looking for this and that each district has its own makeup. 
For us, we look internally at our practices and curriculum model. He went on to say that our 
Curriculum Directors do network with their colleagues in other districts. 
 
Grade 3-8 Highlights 

 51% of students met or exceeded expectations in ELA with grades 3 and 4 having 
highest proportion of meeting and exceeding expectations, 57% and 53% 
respectively 

 Grade 3 experienced an 11 percentage point increase in the average scaled scores 
since 2017 

 In Mathematics, students in grades 3, 4, and 7 had the highest proportion of students 
meeting or exceeding expectations. 

 
Elementary Highlights 

 At Farley, there was the following highlight: 
o  53%  of students in grade 4 met or exceeded expectations, a 7% increase 

from 2018 
 At Forest Ave, there were the following highlights: 

o 74% of students in grade 3 met or exceeded expectations in  ELA (16% 
increase from 2018) 

o 56% of students in grade 4 met or exceeded expectations in ELA (10% 
increase from 2018) 

o 72% of students in grade 3 met or exceeded expectations in Mathematics (6% 
increase from 2018) 

 At Mulready Elementary, there were the following highlights: 
o 54% of students in grade 3 met or exceeded expectations in ELA (7% 

increase from 2018) 
o 65% of students in grade 3 met or exceeded expectations in Mathematics (5% 

increase from 2018) 
 
Discussion ensued about tracking cohorts from grade to grade. 
 



Not Approved 

4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Secondary Highlights 
 At Quinn Middle School there were the following highlights: 

o 49% of student in Grade 5 met or exceeded expectations in ELA (2% increase 
from 2018) 

o Students in grades 5-7, demonstrated as a cohort, an increase in meeting or 
exceeding expectations in Mathematics from 36% to 54% 

o 50% of students in grade 5 met or exceeded expectations in Science. 
Additionally, they superseded the State. 
 

 At Hudson High School there were the following highlights:  
o 51% of students in Grade 8 met or exceeded expectations in ELA 
o 64% of students in Grade 10 met or exceeded expectations in ELA 
o 60% of students in Grade 10 met or exceeded expectations in Math 
o Average scaled scores in Grade 10 superseded State averages in both ELA 

and Math 
 
 
Dr. Rodrigues reported that there is a discrepancy in most of the graphs of one percentage 
point. After interacting with the state, we were informed the discrepancy it is due to 
rounding. This will be fixed over time.  
There is also a discrepancy in the Student Growth Percentile (SGP) graphs. When the data 
is downloaded to an excel spreadsheet the data changes. 
 
Dr. Rodrigues presented Student Growth Percentile (SGP) charts for English Language Arts 
and Mathematics. The Student Growth Percentiles look at how students are growing over 
time. This looks at cohorts of students of the same profile who achieve particular scaled 
scores at different times.  Dr. Rodrigues reported that we continue to see a variation of high 
growth the low growth. In mathematics, students in grades 5 and 8 had the greatest 
proportion of students with very low growth. We will be exploring why these grades are in 
the low range of growth percentile.  
 
Mr. Maston asked if there was something significant about Grade 8. 
Discussion ensued about transition years, whether there are other districts with a similar 
grade setup, and if this is a factor. 
Discussion ensued about the next steps for the data dive, and how the Committee will get 
visibility to the output. 
 
Subcommittee Reports 
 
Budget Subcommittee 
none 
Policy Subcommittee 
Mr. Smith stated that the Policy Subcommittee would meet in 2 weeks. 
Strategic Goals Subcommittee 
none 
Superintendent’s Evaluation Subcommittee 
None 



Not Approved 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

V. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mr. Maston noted that there is a Buildings and Grounds Subcommittee scheduled for the 
end of the month to start the conversation about what to do about the Apsley St. building. 
 
Student Report Caitlin Reagan 
 
Caitlin Reagan, student representative,  gave the student report with the following highlights: 
 

 Colorcycle Program: The community council will be working with the principals at 
the other schools to try to implement this program across the other schools in the 
district. 

 Activities bulletin board: Space has be found in the cafeteria. Community council 
would like to alter the Educator of the Month program. In November, they would 
like to use the board for students to write notes of Thanksgiving on turkeys to 
teachers. The community council would review all notes before they are posted. This 
could also be a fundraiser. Repeating this in May for teacher appreciation has also 
been discussed. 

 This week is Spirit week at Hudson High School. 
o Each day has a different team. 
o Penny Wars is going on during spirit week again this year. The goal is to 

build community and proceeds raised would go to another water fountain in 
G pod. 

o The Homecoming Rally is this Thursday. 
 Homecoming dance is now scheduled for Nov 16. 
 The Junior and Senior classes now have class advisors. 
 The Junior Prom is scheduled for May 15, 2020. 
 The Community Council would like to get a new electronic marquis for outside the 

High School. 
 Math center is starting after school on Tuesdays 2-3 p.m. This is open to any student 

who needs help in any math class. 
 There will be a Principal’s Coffee Thursday at 6:30 p.m. in the library.  
 There will be a Red Cross Blood Drive at Hudson High on October 15. 
 The yearbook committee has begun work on the class of 2020’s yearbook. 
 ARC is still a concern of the student body. They are happy that negotiations are 

ongoing and are hopeful that ARC will happen. 
 
Matters for Discussion: 

a) Old Business 
 

b)  New Business 
1. Discussion of 2019 MASC Resolutions 

Mr. Maston stated that we would be presenting the resolutions this 
week and vote on them at the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Maston asked Mr. Smith if he was comfortable with the 
revisions to the Transportation Resolution. Mr. Smith stated the 



Not Approved 

6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VI. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VII. 
 

only addition was a reference to Massachusetts General Law.  He 
went on to say he did not have any major concerns.  
 
Discussion ensued about the general nature of the resolutions.  
 
Discussion ensued about Resolution 2, eliminating the MTEL 
exam. Dr. Rodrigues stated that MTEL has been an issue in getting 
dedicated, qualified people. He went on to say it could be modified 
and have a different slant of expectations, with more emphasis on 
teaching and learning.  
 
Discussion ensued about the test and the discrepancies on what is 
tested on for different licenses.  
 
Mr. Smith asked if there is data on diversity. Dr. Rodrigues said 
that data does exist.  Discussion ensued about bias on standardized 
tests. Dr. Rodrigues stated that currently this is not a problem for 
Hudson but could potentially be one next year when we start to hire 
for the Dual Language Program.  
 

Matters for Action: 
a) Old Business 

1. Approval of FY20 Budget Stabilization Plan 
Dr. Rodrigues stated that there had been two different scenarios 
provided for how to utilize the balance. Scenario A would split the 
overage between FY21 and FY22 equally. Scenario B would 
frontload FY21 to take care of the carry over and the balance would 
go to FY22.  
Dr. Rodrigues recommended Scenario A. Discussion ensued. 
 
A motion to approve the FY20 Budget Stabilization Plan Scenario 
A was made by Mr. Smith and seconded by Ms. Tousignant 
Dufour. On a vote of 6-0, the motion passed. 
 

b)   New Business 
Approval of Quinn Home and School Gift to the Hudson 
SEPAC/ Best Buddies Program in the amount of $2000.00 
Dr. Rodrigues recognized Ms. Cheryl Langill for her hard work in 
making this happen. Mr. Smith commended everyone working 
together to support the students.  
 
A motion to approve the Quinn Home and School Gift to the 
Hudson SEPAC/ Best Buddies Program was made by Mr. Tracy 
and seconded by Mr. Smith. On a vote of 6-0, the motion passed. 

 
Items of Interest to the School Committee  
 



Not Approved 

7 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VIII. 
 
 
 
IX. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Ryan stated that the Mulready fun run was held last Thursday. The original goal was 
$20,000. She reported that $35,000 was raised. She expressed a big thanks to everyone 
involved.  
 
Mr. Smith asked if we can dive in on the absenteeism issue. He asked specifically about how 
to clarify chronic absences versus students that are traveling and/or sick. He asked if there 
could be an opportunity to earn time back. Discussion ensued about the intent of the DESE 
absenteeism. Dr. Rodrigues stated that we are reviewing the attendance policy, procedures, 
and guidelines associated with it. He also stated that we are paying very close attention to 
how absences are coded. 
 
Mr. Smith asked if the Parent Forum scheduled for October 15 is still on. Dr. Rodrigues 
confirmed that it was and that there would be a quick presentation on student discipline. 
 
Executive Session 
At   8:28 p.m., Committee Chair Glenn Maston, noted that Executive session was not 
needed. 
 
Adjournment     
A motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Smith and seconded by Ms. Ryan. On a vote of 
6-0, the motion passed. 
 

                                                                Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

                                                                Michele Tousignant Dufour, Secretary 
                                                                    Hudson School Committee   



Report of the Superintendent 
 

 School Improvement Plans 



 

 

 

C.A.	FARLEY		
ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

School	Improvement	Plan	
2019‐2020	

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 

C.A. FARLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLAN                                 2019‐2020 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

  Strategic Objective: # 1 High Quality Instructional Practices 
Build capacity at all District levels to ensure that every educator and administrator are utilizing 
high‐leverage practices to support outstanding teaching and learning experiences for ALL 
students, every day. 
 
 

Goal # 1:   Build experiences that demonstrate diverse student centered instructional 
practices  
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Identify and learn 3‐5 research based instructional practices that involve all content 
areas. 

 Create a targeted professional development plan building expertise in selected 
evidence‐based practices. 

 Create an internal accountability system (inspect what we expect).  
 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 3‐5 evidence based instructional practices will be identified by December, 2019 

 Buy‐in for an internal accountability system that all stakeholders will use  
 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 From Winter to Spring, school wide‐focus identified in learning walks, agendas, etc. in 
at least 50% of experiences  

 Professional development needs identified for year 2 of implementation 

 Accountability system created by February, 2020 to monitor the effectiveness of 
instructional practices 

 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 All stakeholders will Identify, learn and begin to use effective evidence‐based 
instructional practices, in all areas of the school, to meet the needs of each student. 

 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: #1 High Quality Instructional Practice 
Build capacity at all District levels to ensure that every educator and administrator are utilizing 
high‐leverage practices to support outstanding teaching and learning experiences for ALL 
students, every day. 
 

Goal #2: Build the capacity of staff to analyze data, through a reflective cycle of inquiry, to 
inform instruction for all students. 
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Define what data is and how to explicitly use it to drive instruction. 

 Develop methods of reflection using the specific protocol, “cycle of inquiry,” developed 
by ELEVATE 

 Internal and External SMARTe goals will be developed to measure student growth 

 Identify protocols to review data sources  

 Provide staff with the necessary professional development on how to adjust instruction 
based on student data 

 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Creation of data sources that support evidence based practices by December, 2019 

 A central place, will be identified, where data will be displayed for staff  
 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 All staff will regularly reflect on data during all meetings by February, 2020 

 Staff will be able to identify areas of need for students based of reflection of data 
throughout the 2019/2020 school year 

 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Educators will adjust their instructional practices based on the reflection of data, to  
meet the needs of all students.  

 Additional structures for student improvement will be decided, based on student 
growth towards building instructional focus as measured by SMARTe goals. 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 
Strategic Objective: #4 Climate and Culture 
Develop a culture that promotes equity, eliminates opportunity gaps, and empowers 
students and adults to build strong relationships, psychological safety, and mutual 
accountability. 
 

 

Goal #3: Effective Communication and collaboration amongst all staff 
 
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Professional development for understanding how effective teams collaborate 

 Understanding and participating in the deeper norms of collaboration 

 Build trust and develop strategies to work through vulnerabilities  

 Communication protocol, based on feedback from district Climate and Culture Survey, 
will be developed 
 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Norms of collaboration practiced at all Common Planning Time, Data teams, principal’s 
meetings, and coaching meetings 

 Communication to all stakeholders delivered in a timely manner 
 
 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 Embedded norms in collaborative discussions throughout the 2019/2020 school year 

 Teams will hold each other mutually accountable for meeting norms and outcomes at 
all meetings during the 2019/2020 school year 

 Communication relevant to select groups will be evident throughout the 2019/2020 
school year 
 

 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Staff will openly and effectively communicate and collaborate to improve instructional 
practices to increase student achievement in relation to the 3‐5 research based 
instructional practices 

 All stakeholders will have received updates regarding relevant information needed for 
their specific role in the school community 

 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective#2: Educating the Whole Child 
Provide rigorous, inclusive academic and social emotional learning experiences to 
ensure ALL students succeed academically. 
 
 

Goal #4:  Establish a social‐emotional curriculum to ensure a positive learning community  
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Identify individual students’ needs from data gathered using ISS form 

 Develop a plan to implement specific changes to existing school structures to make them more 
comprehensive for students 

 Through the work of MTSS engage in a discussion of tiers of support 

 Provide staff with professional development around best practices for providing supports for all 
students around social/emotional concerns 

 Clinician provided through 366 Grant will provide in school therapeutic support for students in 
need 

 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Staff will share best practices around the use of social emotional learning in their own 
classrooms 

 Students will participate in small group and individual therapeutic sessions 
 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 December 2019/March 2019 staff will implement new strategies around social 
emotional learning in their classrooms learned through sharing of best practices 

 Students receiving therapeutic interventions will show growth in positive social 
emotional interactions with peers and adults by December 2019 

 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 All staff will have developed a repertoire of skills to support students social emotional 
growth 

 Students will develop appropriate strategies to promote healthy peer and adult 
relationships in all areas of the school 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Forest Avenue School Improvement Plan 
2019 - 2020 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

FOREST AVENUE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLAN                               2019‐2020 
D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: # 1 High Quality Instructional Practices 

Build capacity at all District levels to ensure that every educator and administrator are utilizing 

high‐leverage practices to support outstanding teaching and learning experiences for ALL 

students, every day. 

Goal # 1:   Maintain a high functioning building level Instructional Leadership Team to 

support the implementation of the school‐wide measurable instructional focus. 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Meet 2 times per month as an ILT with the goal of looking at school‐wide data to 
inform next steps.  

 Disseminate and retrieve feedback from all stakeholders within the building on a 
regular basis. 

 Create a School Improvement Plan that matches the District Improvement Plan. 

 Implement a school‐wide instructional focus. 

 Create a targeted professional development plan which builds expertise in selected 
evidence‐based practices. 

 Identify 3‐5 evidence‐based instructional practices which support our school‐wide 
instructional focus 

 Implement at least one of the evidence‐based practices in every classroom with every 
student 

 Create an internal accountability system. 

 Create at least one school‐wide SMARTe goal. One around a state‐wide measure and 
possibly a second one around a local, internal measure of student performance. 

 Create a targeted plan to engage families and the community to support the school‐
wide instructional focus. 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 

in practice? 

 ILT agenda, meeting notes and newsletter 

 Whole staff participation (staff meetings) 

 Identified SIP with school‐wide instructional focus 

 Identified professional development plan 

 Identify internal accountability system  

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 

performance measures?) 

 From winter‐spring, school‐wide focus is evident throughout the building in at least 
50% of experiences. 

 Professional development needs identified for implementation 

 Implement accountability system  

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 All stakeholders will Identify, learn and begin to use effective evidence‐based 
instructional practices to meet the needs of each student. 



Page 2 of 4 
 
 
D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: #2 Educating the Whole Child 
Provide rigorous social emotional learning experiences to ensure ALL students succeed academically.   

 

Goal #2:  To decrease student chronic absenteeism at Forest Avenue School by 20% during 

the 2019 – 2020 school year.  Improving student daily attendance will ensure participation in 

rigorous academic instruction with social emotional supports.      

 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Educate all families about the importance of school attendance during meetings (Home 
& School, School Improvement Council) and via the Falcon Focus, email & phone blasts 

 Identify the subgroups of students who are chronically absent 

 Contact families of chronically absent students and identify potential challenges 
associated with the student’s lack of attendance.    

 Identify the times of year when chronic absenteeism spikes and establish a plan to 
address it 

 Regularly share school‐wide attendance data with parents and staff at the completion 
of each trimester  

 Notify parents when their student has been absent or tardy every 5 times via email or 
letter 

 Meet with parents whose children have been absent or tardy more than 5 times due to 
non‐illness related reasons to establish a course of action to improve their attendance 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 

in practice? 

 Subgroup data 

 Parent presentations, meeting notes, newsletter articles, & email messages 

 Trimester attendance data  

 Sample attendance letters and student attendance plans  
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 

performance measures?) 

 Comparison of FY20 ASPEN trimester attendance data with FY19 trimester attendance 
data    
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 We will see a decrease of 20% or more during the 2019 – 2020 school year.         .    
 

 



Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: #3 Innovative Educational Practices 

Ensure that ALL students are exposed and engaged in innovative and challenging academic 

courses and programs  

 

 

Goal #3:  To analyze the 2019 MCAS Mathematics data of the Lowest Performing, 

Economically Disadvantaged, EL & Former EL subgroups and identify a course of action so 

that these students show growth on the 2020 MCAS Mathematics test.      

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Identify the cohort of Lowest Performing, Economically Disadvantaged, EL & Former EL 
students in grade 4 who performed in Partially Meeting Expectations and/or Not 
Meeting Expectations on the 2019 MCAS Mathematics Test 

 Analyze the mathematics data of these subgroups to identify trends, patterns, or gaps 
that have contributed to the decline in their scores.  

 Develop intervention plans to ensure student support and success    
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 

in practice? 

 Identified the students in subgroup cohorts 

 Identify trends, patterns, and gaps 

 Develop student intervention plans   
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 

performance measures?) 

 Data of growth as illustrated on student success plans  
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Evidence based best practices in support of Show What You Know will be successfully 
implemented with at least one best practice being used in every classroom with every 
student.   

 Implement best practices to help these students show improvement of the 2020 MCAS 
Mathematics Test 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 
 
D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 
Strategic Objective: # 4 Climate and Culture 

Develop a culture that promotes equity among adults, builds strong relationships, 

psychological safety, and mutual accountability    

 

 

Goal # 4: To continue to develop a working environment that values a cohesive staff and a 

positive building culture, creating a community of mutual trust and respect by promoting a 

common vision and adhering to agreed upon norms of collaboration 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Begin to establish and agree upon building‐wide staff values and norms  

 Investigate and identify new protocols that foster trust within the building.  

 Create and establish new ways to collaborate among multidisciplinary staff members. 

 Establish system for staff to give positive feedback, express gratitude, and recognize 
each other. 
 

 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 

in practice? 

 Established structures for staff to provide positive feedback 

 Schedule additional consult time (vertical teaming and EL consult time). 

 The creation of  a Google Doc to organize collaboration times 
 

 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 

performance measures?) 

 Established protocols and norms will be regularly and effectively used during meetings  

 New means of collaboration will be utilized by staff during building based meetings  

 Established means of systems for staff to express positive feedback, gratitude, and to 
positively recognize one another will be implemented    
  

 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 The development of a working environment that values a cohesive staff and a positive 
building culture, creating a community of mutual trust and respect by promoting a 
common vision and adhering to agreed upon norms of collaboration.   
 

 



 

 
JOSEPH L. MULREADY SCHOOL 

 

 
 

SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 2019 ‐ 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 
 

JOSEPH L. MULREADY SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLAN                           2019‐2020 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: # 1 High Quality Instructional Practices 
Build capacity at all District levels to ensure that every educator and administrator are utilizing 
high‐leverage practices to support outstanding teaching and learning experiences for ALL 
students, every day. 

Goal # 1:  Establish a high functioning building level Instructional Leadership Team with a 
measurable school‐wide instructional focus.  

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Meet two times per month as an ILT with the goal of looking at school‐wide data to 

inform next steps. 

 Disseminate and retrieve feedback from all stakeholders within the building on a 

regular basis. 

 Create School Improvement Plan that matches the District Improvement Plan 

 Grade levels and specialty areas will each decide on a complex task 

 Create a targeted professional development plan building expertise in selected 

evidence‐based practices. 

 Create an internal accountability system to assess learning/growth concerning the 

complex tasks.  

 Create at least one school‐wide internal assessment for a SMARTe goal. 

 Announce school‐wide instructional focus to parents 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 ILT agenda and meeting notes 

 Staff participation on and off team 

 Identified school improvement plan with instructional school‐wide instructional focus 

 Professional Development opportunity 

 Complex Tasks in each grade level and in specialty areas 

 Buy‐in for an internal accountability system that all stakeholders will use  

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 From Winter to Spring, school wide‐focus identified in learning walks, agendas, etc. in 

at least 50% of experiences  

 Professional development needs identified  

 Internal accountablity system (SMARTe goal) created by June, 2020.   

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 All stakeholders will Identify, learn and begin to use effective evidence‐based 

instructional practices to meet the needs of each student. 

 Each grade level and specialty area will have identified a complex task and 

corresponding assessment 

 Parents will share in the identification of complex tasks, habits of mind, and internal 

assessments that will show growth in their children. 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: #2 Educating the Whole Child 
Provide rigorous, inclusive academic and social emotional learning experiences to ensure ALL students 
succeed academically. 
 
 

Goal # 2: 
Analyze 3rd grade MCAS scores and target instruction towards the needs of the children in 
NM in order to raise their scores on the 4th grade MCAS. 
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Analyze MCAS scores and identify students in the PM category 

 Analyze areas in Math and ELA where students scored poorly 

 Prepare spreadsheets depicting the information 

 Design targeted instruction for those in the Not Meeting category in order to move 

them towards or into the Meeting category. 

 Institute targeted instruction for those in the Not Meeting category in order to move 

them forward towards or in the “meeting” category. 

 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Meet with 4th grade teachers and SPED teacher, Math Specialist, Reading Specialist, 
and Instructional Coach to analyze the data. 

 Designing of targeted instruction for students 

 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 Institute targeted instruction 

 Monitor growth of students in remediated areas and collect data 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Targeted instruction will be designed and implemented this year and used in future 
years 

 Data will show student growth 

 Students will improve upon their MCAS scores  
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: #3 Innovative Educational Practices 
Ensure ALL students are exposed to and engaged in innovative and challenging academic courses and 
programs  

Goal # 3: 
Grade level and specialty area teachers will choose and implement increased use of 
technology into their curriculum. 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Pre‐teach through technology  

 Digital Learning Platforms/Portfolios: Seesaw, Class Dojo, Flipgrid, etc. 

 Google Classroom 

 Curriculum related apps, websites, and programs 

 Use of video and audio recordings (reflection and feedback) 

 Morning Announcements 

 Videotaped read alouds 

 Third grade keyboarding skills 

 Pilot a Grade 4 STEM class 

 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Teacher and student exploration of digital learning platforms. 

 Teacher exploration of apps, websites, and programs. 

 Morning announcements 

 Meet with curriculum coordinator and librarian to begin planning for STEM classes 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 Embedding use of video and audio recordings into lessons, assignments, assessments, 

and feedback 

 Use of digital learning platforms by grade level teachers and specialists. 

 Teacher books on video to promote school themes 

 Lesson plans for STEM classes 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Embedded use of video and audio recordings into lessons, assignments, assessments, 

and feedback by teachers and students. 

 Increased level of student learning and engagement via digital learning platforms. 

 Increased performance in keyboarding skills in grade 3 

 Teacher video dispersed to public 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: # 4 Climate and Culture 
Develop a culture that promotes equity, eliminates opportunity gaps and empowers students and 
adults to build strong relationships, psychological safety and mutual accountability.  
Ensure an environment where children feel empathetic towards others 

Goal # 4: 
Ensure an environment where ALL are accepted, through the development of understanding and 
respect for diversity 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 
 Plan monthly school‐wide read‐alouds about diversity in any form (cultural, disability, 

economic, etc) 

 Organize Multicultural event. 

 Assemble readers and literature for Disability Awareness Month. 

 Choosing a culture of the month to highlight through various mediums 

(greeting/announcement, read‐alouds, music, etc.) 

 Explore possibilities for multicultural assemblies/presentations. 

 On‐line announcements 

 Hold a Math night 

 Multi‐cultural books read by teachers on‐line

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Identify  monthly themes and their corresponding books to highlight diversity and share with 
staff 

 Identify readers and order books (disabilities and cultures) 

 Identify a cultural presentation 

 Research Portuguese and Spanish language books 

 Research appropriate games for Math Night, assemble student volunteers, purchase supplies, 
invite teachers to attend 

 Make labels to post around school for ELL students

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 Readers prepared and books ordered 

 Book cultural presentation/Teacher on‐line read alouds 

 Make and distribute a monthly calendar 

 Order Portuguese and Spanish language books 

 Design brochure for Math Night, develop take‐away 

 Place labels for ELLs around the school and in classrooms

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 
 Present monthly school‐wide read‐alouds about diversity in any form (cultural, disability, 

economic, etc) 

 Host a Multicultural event 

 Host Math Night 

 Host readers and present literature for Disability Awareness Month. 

 Highlight a culture of the month to through various mediums (greeting/announcement, read‐
alouds, music, etc.) 

 Labels for ELLs around the school and in classrooms



 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 
 

DAVID J. QUINN MIDDLE SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLAN                                 2019‐2020 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: # 1 High Quality Instructional Practices 
Build capacity at all District levels to ensure that every educator and administrator are utilizing 
high‐leverage practices to support outstanding teaching and learning experiences for ALL 
students, every day. 

Goal # 1:  The school’s Instructional Leadership Team (ILT) will identify a measurable school‐
wide instructional focus. The ILT will determine research‐based teaching strategies and 
activities that align with that focus. Staff will begin to implement these strategies and 
activities as part of their regular instruction so as to have a positive impact on student 
learning. 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 ILT to meet twice per month to focus on this work 

 ILT will identify a school‐wide instructional focus 

 ILT will determine research‐based teaching strategies and activities that align with the 
identified instructional focus 

 Staff will implement the strategies and activities into instructional practice 

 ILT will identify a benchmark for teacher implementation of strategies and activities 
and determine how best to measure student learning outcomes 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 ILT determines an instructional focus with associated research‐based teacher practices 

 Staff use the strategies and activities that align with the identified instructional focus 

 These strategies and activities lead to the desired student behaviors and outcomes 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 By the end of Quarter 1 the ILT will have identified an instructional focus  

 By the end of Quarter 2 the ILT will determine research‐based teaching strategies and 
activities that align with the identified instructional focus and establish associated 
student behaviors 

 During Quarter 3 staff will use these teaching strategies and activities as part of their 
regular practice 

 During Quarter 4 ILT members will do learning walks to accumulate data regarding 
teacher implementation of ILT identified strategies and activities     
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Teachers will begin to use effective, research‐based instructional practices to meet the 
needs of all students every day. Students will show early evidence of being able to 
communicate their understanding by meeting the ILT‐established benchmarks for 
student outcomes and behaviors. 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: # 2 Educate the Whole Child  
Provide rigorous, inclusive academic and social emotional learning experiences to ensure ALL 
students succeed academically. 
 

Goal # 2: To implement and assess a social emotional curriculum for all students which leads 
to positive academic, emotional and behavioral outcomes for students.      

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Implement a Master Schedule that accommodates for SEL instruction for all students 

 Teachers given time to plan for SEL work and to establish school‐wide SEL norms 

 Teachers implement SEL curriculum on a regularly scheduled basis – during SEL time 

and during regular classroom  lessons leading to better connections between adults 

and students 

 All staff model established SEL norms  

 Develop a consistent behavior management system for students focused on positive 
reinforcement and logical, constructive interventions 

 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Master Schedule with dedicated time for SEL work is implemented 

 Teachers are given meeting time to discuss and plan for SEL 

 SEL norms developed by teachers 

 A behavioral management system has been created and implemented 

 Students can identify at least one adult at school that they feel comfortable speaking 
with about school‐based and personal items 

 Staff will make positive connections with students and be seen as allies in supporting 
students academically, socially and emotionally 

 Less discipline referrals when compared to the 2018‐2019 school year 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

  Improved student grades and social behaviors as compared to the 2018‐2019 school 
year 

 SEL norms are shared with students and staff 

 The behavior management system is shared with students and staff  

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 An SEL curriculum that ensures all students succeed academically, socially and 
emotionally. This will be measured by improved attendance, better grades, more 
involvement in clubs & activities and positive  END OF YEAR  student survey results 
compared to last year 

 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: # 2 Educate the Whole Child  

Provide rigorous, inclusive academic and social emotional learning experiences to ensure ALL 
students succeed academically. 
 

Goal # 3: To reduce the number of student absences in 2019‐2020 by at least 10% when 
compared to 2018‐2019 so as to lead to better student academic performance. 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Communicate with families of 2018‐2019 chronically absent students about the 
importance of being in school 

 Run a weekly absence reports for cumulative absences to date and absences during the 
prior week 

 Review and discuss these absence reports with the Principal’s Advisory Team (PAT) on a 
weekly basis to implement a weekly intervention plan 

 Administration, counselors and classroom teachers to speak with individual students 
and their families about excessive absences 

 Require students to make up missed class time with teachers 

 Recognize students for improved attendance including perfect attendance awards 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Communicate with families in fall 2019. 

 Weekly attendance reports run and reviewed by PAT with subsequent weekly 
intervention plan 

 Weekly attendance reports will show students attending school more regularly than 
during the 2018‐2019 school year 

 Improved grades when compared to last year 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

  Weekly attendance reports will show students attending school more regularly when 
compared to last year 

 Students will report after school to teachers to make up missed class time 

 Students will see their teachers after school more regularly even when not required 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Student absences will decline by at least 10% when compared to last year, leading to 
better academic performance. 

 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: #4 Climate and Culture  

Develop a culture that promotes equity among adults, builds strong relationships, 
psychological safety, and mutual accountability 
 

Goal #4: To build an environment of collaboration and collegiality among staff so as to lead 
to better academic, social and emotional outcomes for students.   

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Create teacher SHOUT‐OUT program   

 Recognize and share staff work being done in classrooms 

 Highlight one staff member per week in staff newsletter  

 Work with Quinn’s Sunshine Fund to establish regular staff social events 

 Staff will regularly attend weekly team time meetings 

 Coverage is arranged for teachers to attend staff and student meetings when 
requested   

 Administration will periodically attend weekly team time meetings on a regularly 
scheduled basis    

 Staff will be asked to work and interact with colleagues from across the building during 
staff meetings 

 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 Teacher recognition through SHOUT‐OUT program and weekly staff newsletter 

 More and better attended social events 

 Increased staff collaboration both inside and outside of formal meeting times   

 Teachers using strategies, ideas and activities derived from fellow staff members 

 When information is shared about a student, it is shared with all of the student’s 
teachers 

 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 Mid‐year staff survey in which at least 50% of staff report that the they feel more 
connected to each other when compared to last year 

 More interaction between teachers from different grades and teams 

 Common practices between teachers seen by evaluators and directors during 
classroom observations and walk‐throughs 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Staff are more collaborative and satisfied with their work, leading to increased student 
academic performance. This will be measured by improved student grades and a year‐
end staff survey in which at least 75% of staff report feeling that collaboration and 
collegiality have improved since last year. 

 



                     Hudson High School 

2019‐2020  

SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT 

PLAN 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 4 
 

HUDSON HIGH SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLAN                                   2019‐2020 

 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

  Strategic Objective: # 1 High Quality Instructional Practices 
Build capacity at all District levels to ensure that every educator and administrator are utilizing 
high‐leverage practices to support outstanding teaching and learning experiences for ALL 
students, every day. 
 

GOAL # 1: HHS will identify 1‐3 instructional practices aligned with the school‐wide 
instructional focus of PERSEVERANCE that the staff will commit to implementing for all 
students, every day.  
 
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Regular ILT meetings to plan building professional development opportunities. 

 Collect and analyze feedback from faculty and other stakeholders to ensure that we 

create learning opportunities that support the needs of all stakeholders. 

 Create models that staff can use to assess the extent to which students can 
demonstrate perseverance in their respective disciplines.   

 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

 By the end of October, the HHS staff will have selected a specific area of instruction 

from which we will narrowly define our practices related to perseverance.  

 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

 Norming the definition of perseverance so that all stakeholders understand what it is 

and what it looks like.  

 Offering resources to staff to learn about and reflect on specific elements of 
instructional practice related to perseverance.  
 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Agree upon student performance data to examine in subsequent years by which to 
measure the effectiveness of our efforts to teach perseverance.  
 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

  Strategic Objective: #1 High Quality Instructional Practices 
Build capacity at all District levels to ensure that every educator and administrator are utilizing 
high‐leverage practices to support outstanding teaching and learning experiences for ALL 
students, every day. 
 

GOAL #2: In conjunction with our instructional focus of PERSEVERANCE, HHS will commit to 
using student assessment data in order to learn and practice instructional strategies that 
support students in reaching mastery when they do not achieve it the first time.   
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

● Regular ILT meetings to plan building professional development opportunities. 
● Use building‐level student achievement data to create inquiry questions related to 

student learning. 
● Create models that staff can use to assess the extent to which students can 

demonstrate perseverance in their respective disciplines. 
● Offering resources to staff to learn about and reflect on specific elements of 

instructional practice related to perseverance.  
 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

● Individual, team, and department goals will establish student learning targets to create 
opportunities for staff to talk about student assessment strategies.  

 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

  Staff will develop increased capacity and awareness around practicing a cycle of 
inquiry related to student learning and achievement 

 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Agree upon student performance data to examine in subsequent years by which to 
measure the effectiveness of our efforts to teach perseverance. 

 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: #1 High Quality Instructional Practices 
Build capacity at all District levels to ensure that every educator and administrator are utilizing 
high‐leverage practices to support outstanding teaching and learning experiences for ALL 
students, every day. 

 

Strategic Objective: #2 Educating the Whole Child   

Provide rigorous, inclusive academic and social emotional learning experiences to 

ensure ALL students succeed academically. 

 
Strategic Objective: #3 Innovative Educational Practices 
Ensure that ALL students are exposed to and engaged in innovative and challenging 

academic courses and programs. 

 

Strategic Objective: #4 Climate and Culture  
Develop a culture that promotes equity, eliminates opportunity gaps, and empowers 
students and adults to build strong relationships, psychological safety, and mutual 
accountability. 

GOAL #3: Complete the New England Association of Schools & Colleges (NEASC) decennial 
accreditation process. 
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

 Review the accreditation collaborative conference report  from May, 2018 

 Establish teams to report on the goals established in that report 

 Prepare accreditation summary report by February, 2020 

 Prepare for and execute the NEASC summary visit in March, 2020 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

● Produce an accreditation summary report reflecting our successes and opportunities 
for growth as a result of the accreditation process. 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

● Establish a plan to communicate a shared understanding of what the HHS Vision of a 
Graduate is and how it will inform practice moving forward 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

● Receive accreditation from the NEASC 

 Exit the accreditation process with suggested long‐term goals for our continued 
success. 

 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

 

D
el
iv
er
in
g
 W

o
rl
d
‐C
la
ss
 E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 T
o
d
a
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
G
lo
b
a
l L
ea

d
er
s 
o
f 
To

m
o
rr
o
w

 

Strategic Objective: #3 Innovative Instructional Practices 
Ensure that ALL students are exposed to and engaged in innovative and challenging 
academic courses and programs. 
 

Goal #4: In an effort to reflect on and refine the HHS Program of Studies, HHS will assess 
current strengths with the academic program and identify opportunities for growth.  
 
 

Activities:  (Steps to be taken to implement plan) 

● Review historical enrollment data of various HHS programs 
● Communicate what curriculum pathways currently exist to staff, students, and 

community and what role they play in understanding our academic program 
● Explore possible community partnerships to anchor curriculum pathways with a field‐

based experience 
● Publish a revised Program of Studies for SY 20‐21 

 
 
 

Early Evidence of Change: (how will you know if your actions are producing the desired change 
in practice? 

● Increased awareness of the breadth and depth of the HHS academic program 
 
 
 

 Short‐ Term Outcomes:  (how will you know if the change in practice is impacting student 
performance measures?) 

●  Production of a course selection sheet aligned with our Program of Studies and 
curriculum pathways 

 Creation of a short‐term plan to enhance curriculum pathways through advisory boards 
and community partnerships 

 
 
 

Final Outcomes (annual targets for student performance outcomes) 

 Establish a long‐term curriculum vision that deepens our current offerings and meets 
the needs of all learners in the building 

 
 
 
 



Matters for Discussion 
New Business 

1. Staff and Parent Listening Sessions 



   

STAFF LISTENING SESSION SUMMARY
MARCO C. RODRIGUES, ED.D.

OCTOBER 22, 2019

SUPERINTENDENT EVALUATION RUBRIC
Standard IV: Indicators A, C, D 

 



10/22/2019  staff listening session  1
 

STAFF LISTENING SESSION 

 

Mulready Elementary Listening Session – 9/30/19 

Orton‐Gillingham – ques on regarding small group implementa on with fidelity – (A: connec on to 
MTSS framework implementa on tool to iden fy what is being done at all  ers – discussed 
frontloading at earlier grades) 

Class Size – K classes up to 24 students – District’s ability to keep smaller class sizes at younger grades 
(A: School Commi ee Policy average of 20 per class.  The budget stabiliza on plan is in place and we 
could evaluate in the future, budget condi ons to support an average of 18 students per class in lower 
grades) 

ABA Staff – undervalued by salary and benefits and some don’t have the incen ve to stay with us over 
me (A: This is on our radar – they don’t have similar benefits package and we are not as compe ve 

as others around us – we need more stability and, to be more compe ve with all non‐contractual 
posi ons, we will complete a through market analysis for the FY21 budget) 

Subs tutes – lack of subs tute teachers at  mes impact services ‐ could we up the sub pay a bit to stay 
compe ve with districts around us? (A: this is also on our radar – we will evaluate a scaled pay system 
during the FY21 the budget process) 

MCAS – celebra ng scores as a building  

 

Farley Elementary Listening Session – 10/2/19 

EL classes – posi ve comments about services for all students individualized to meet their needs – 
push in is working for a first grade classroom with a lot of work and co‐planning (A: discussed the plans 
to start the Dual Language Program next year in K to improve the por olio of op ons for ELs) 

Subs tutes – there is a lack of subs at Farley – using building sub for a long‐term need – can we 
priori ze the need? (A: hiring of subs tute teachers con nues to be a challenge. We will con nue to 
share building subs for important mee ngs‐ we are also looking at compe ve salaries through the 
FY21 budget process) 

Confiden ality‐ concern about parents who may sub in some programs where confiden ality is 
necessary (A: all employees understand the need for confiden ality and if it becomes an issue, it 
should be brought to the administra on’s a en on)  

Professional Development – choice for PD days was appreciated last year and hope to con nue to this 
year‐ Para‐educators are excited about the online opportunity to individualize their needs.  

ILT – some members feel that they are missing out on department or team  me when a ending ILT 
mee ngs – Is it possible for notes to be shared from Department mee ngs to keep in the loop? (A: we 
will reach out to all Curriculum Directors to request that this be done)  

 

 

 



10/22/2019  staff listening session  2
 

Forest Avenue Listening Session – 10/7/19 

Celebra ons ‐ Began the mee ng with a list of posi ve changes – felt that they were listened to 
regarding certain topics from last year’s listening sessions:  

 Teacher Directed Day during the parent/teacher conference week is appreciated 

 November and March conference days are better timed for elementary 

 Genius Hour work was excellent and hope it continues this year 

 Mini‐courses offered in the district are well‐ received 

 The Landscaping work done around the building has been awesome 

EEE Outbreak – ques on about whether or not we are looking at the Department of Public Health? (A: 
Yes, we have been in contact with them regarding the status of EEE threat and will keep principals 
informed of any changes) 

Class size – When a class hits 25, is it the rule to add another class at that grade level?  (A: class size is 
monitored closely – the Superintendent views a student enrollment report every Tuesday‐ 
Kindergarten is high at Mulready right now and we monitor closely‐ We had approximately 40 new 
registered students over the summer in grades 1‐4 across the district) Is needs of students also looked 
at when factoring class size? (A: we do look at need and composi on of classes)  

Staff A endance – Is the district s ll concerned with staff absences? Are you tracking the data? (A: Yes, 
staff absences con nue to be a concern. we do look at the number of subs tute teachers needed on a 
daily basis and monitor the data so that we can provide coverage with the exis ng resources)  

Open House and Conferences – having a Tuesday night is difficult for the rest of the week‐ can we 
switch each year? Can we start K‐2 at 5:30 for open house? (A: we will discuss this issue with principals 
‐  Specialists a endance would be a concern – staying for a longer period of  me)  

Class Size – Are we considering the max of 20 per class? (A: 20 is the average according to School 
Commi ee Policy – we discussed this at Mulready also and will evaluate future budget condi ons)  

Subs tute Teachers – ques on about coverage with shortage of subs – (A: The hiring of two 
permanent day‐to‐day subs have been posi ve. We are trying to avoid having specialists cover classes – 
we’ve discussed poten ally obtaining cafeteria help so that teachers don’t have to do lunch duty.  

“Tracking” of sick days – (A: we are not tracking individually but are looking at the data‐ we know that 
circumstances happen to everyone and sick days are a benefit‐ we need to find solu ons and will 
con nue to look at pa erns and trends to do this. 

Subs tute Pay – are we looking to pay subs more? (A: yes, we are also looking at this and other non‐
contractual personnel. We need to become more compe ve and will evaluate it through the budget 
process)  

 

High School Listening Session 10/10/19 

8th Grade Civics: mainstreamed class of 22 several “lower level” learners – increasing popula on ‐  
essen als classes changing ‐ will this change preps or caseload?  

(A: we need to work on increasing the District’s internal capacity, several programs opened throughout 
the district, the essen als classes need to be evaluated. Addi onal resources are executed through the 
budget process‐ at the building level, we look at the schedule and we will con nue to develop IEPs that 
meet the needs of our students and have services and programs to support them) 



10/22/2019  staff listening session  3
 

Student writer ‐ “heartbreaking conversa on” ran out of courses to take – no humani es pathways – 
several ELA classes taken away. Linguis cs was supposed to be this year and not next, but it wasn’t 
offered this year (A: Some classes did not run due to low interest/enrollment. Encouraged teachers to 
talk with Todd to priori ze courses for coming years) 

Why is there low interest? ‐  For example‐ we are published authors in Linguis cs and Film Studies and 
those courses aren’t offered. 

Community Awareness ‐ How will the community become aware of what we are doing? Hudson used 
to be known for community service and humani es – teachers in the building don’t even know what is 
offered. (A: How can you all get involved, working together to be ambassadors for Hudson High? Do 
you think the rest of your colleagues could do this?)  

Frequent change in leadership ‐ principals and superintendents – the feeling is that we are playing 
catch up and compe ng with Assabet and AMSA. 

Pathways ‐ we should call it clustering.  

Staff interac on: There needs to be be er ways for staff to interact with each other‐ open 
opportuni es like when there were teams in 8th and 9th grade years ago. 

What does the HS stand for? 

EL Department should be a part of the World Language department‐ with success plans it is important 
for collabora on to happen. 

ELS schedules – newcomer math class is a concern. 

 

Quinn Middle School Listening Session 10/17/19  

Is the DIP more than a 1‐year plan? It has lo y goals. (A: The DIP is a 3‐year document and we look to 
make movement toward long‐term goals – the 4 strategic objec ves are broad, by design, and they 
allow schools to work independently toward them.  

Co‐Teaching Model for ELs – Thank you for providing us the opportunity ‐ the model is working well on 
the two teams ‐ they are looking at wri ng prompts and using the WIDA rubric for all students and 
crea ng opportuni es for all learners. Making this work in upper grades with one prep  me per week 
and the teams doing more on their own  me a er and before school is a challenge. 

Opportunity for observing colleagues in the building – (A: agreed that this can be done and we should 
take every opportunity to allow teachers to observe colleagues) 

What is the  meline for hiring a new EL Director? (A: A small screening commi ee will be formed 
soon to look at poten al candidates to be interviewed and an interview commi ee will conduct the 
interviews to determine the top 2 or 3 candidates. We are looking to do this as soon as possible.) 

5th grade schedule – Thank you for listening and for crea ng a great 5th grade schedule. SEL 
opportuni es, climate, Hawk Block are all posi ve outcomes – would be nice to consider something 
like this for 6th and 7th grade (A: we discussed the possibility of reducing a schedule for a day to allow 
for more SEL opportuni es or other team needs. This could s ll be a possibility. It is important that the 
fidelity of Random Acts of Kindness is followed.  

 



10/22/2019  staff listening session  4
 

Is there s ll a considera on of the Advanced Academy? (A: it is on hold for now but will be something 
that is considered in the future and we will have conversa ons about this when ready‐ a parent survey 
went out to those families who leave Hudson to go to AMSA or Assabet in regards to the reasons for 
leaving)  

Advocate for 3 EL teachers for next year – 1 per grade level – with the number of ELs in the district 
increasing including the QMS popula on with ELs or FELs. (A: this is a conversa on that is for budget 
delibera ons – student enrollment is always a primary factor in zero‐based budge ng and has been a 
mindset shi  for budget owners – we con nue to monitor our student enrollment and our subgroups, 
etc. ‐ We also look at the district Accountability data and monitor the lowest quar le which is our 
subgroup popula ons – we also look at # of failing classes at the middle and high school evalua ng 
poten al root cause) 

MCAS Data – who is looking at this data? Want ways to look at this data more in depth across all 
departments while u lizing the reading and math specialists to intervene.  (A: we are recrui ng for a 
new research and accountability specialist who will be able to customize the data for everyone and also 
add other data to Aspen to create internal capacity. We con nue to increase the capacity of our staff to 
look at data and in each building’s SIP, there is a component of MCAS data dives.) 

Grading System – It is a problem that kids are not succeeding on MCAS but ge ng all “A”s in classes, 
or vice‐versa. Some feel that grading should be standards based. Science Department is using the book 
Grading For Equity with Sarah Davis and are finding this extremely helpful. (A: we have been clear 
about the need to evaluate and adjust our grading system. There is currently a wide range of teacher 
prac ces regarding how their respec ve class composes a student final grade. I feel that our current 
system is nega vely impac ng some of our students’ grades.)   

 



   

PARENT FORUM SUMMARY
MARCO C. RODRIGUES, ED.D.

OCTOBER 22, 2019

SUPERINTENDENT EVALUATION RUBRIC
Standard III: Indicators A, B, C, D 
Standard IV: Indicators A, B, C 

 



10/22/2019  parent forum summary  1
 

PARENT FORUM SUMMARY 

 

Parent Forum: October 15, 2019 

Revision to the Discipline Policy presented – The District uses the Massachuse s Associa on of School 
Commi ees’ suggested policy manual language and adopted when appropriate for Hudson. Not many 
changes were made to the actual prac ce. Student handbooks will be updated to include building 
procedures and some policy language will be removed. Obsolete language was also removed from 
policies and from the handbook.  

 October 22nd – revision presented to the Policy Sub‐Committee 

 November 12th ‐  first read for School Committee 

 December 3rd – second read and approval by School Committee  

A endance Policy will be discussed in a future listening session.  

What are the current prac ces for discipline issues?  

 Chapter 222 practices continue to be followed. Each building continues to implement existing 

protocols. New leadership at QMS and HHS provides opportunities to enhance and strengthen   

the protocols in place to ensure that all practices are consistent.  

What can you tell about a student that posed a threat at QMS? 

 Not able to tell the context of the incident. However, we look at individual situations and 

circumstances for all issues. The policy allows the principal to have latitude regarding what 

happens as they build an approach to keeping all students safe. Chapter 222 supports student 

discipline to include alternative to suspensions. It emphasizes proactive ways for the student to 

learn from inappropriate action.  

What is happening in regards to security/lock down drills? 

 Safety drills are in progress and the time bracket for the secondary level is sometime this month. 

 At the elementary level we are looking at a drill that is developmentally appropriate. Elementary 

principals visited Westford Public Schools and will borrow some of their procedures in order to 

do a drill once they know it will be done appropriately‐ most likely in the Spring.  

 The Emergency Management Team is meeting on Oct. 24th to discuss all needs of the district.  

What infrastructures do we have in place for safety‐ are we doing anything addi onal? 

 We are adding additional cameras at the HS with some grant funding and will also add more 

cameras at QMS with our own funding‐ all main doors at each building have locked front doors 

with key fob entries and security cameras.  

 CHAPS has ability to allow parents to use key fobs to enter the buildings. 

What do we have in place for behavioral consequences? 

 It is important for us to look for prevention techniques – if a behavior is new we consider 

possibilities for intervention and prevention. Working with parents for consistency is a key 

factor. 

 The district is part of an S3 Academy and we completing a Social Emotional Learning study. 



10/22/2019  parent forum summary  2
 

 We continue to work with the Department of Health on prevention techniques for smoking 

cessation and vaping.  

What is happening for students who are chronically late or absent? 

 There are many layers of understanding why a student may be late or absent. 

 We need to improve our practices using our MTSS Framework to consider what we are doing 

for all students (tier 1) and those who are more chronically late or absent (tiers 2 and 3). 

 The accountability report for the district is real and holds us accountable for students who are 

absent for more than 10% of school time which is 18 days or more.  

 All three elementary schools are already working on educating parents on the importance of 

being in school and being on time.  

 QMS is also working on educating parents about the importance of attending – there will be an 

effort to determine the root cause.  

 For every 5 absences or tardies a letter will go home to parents and a conversation will be had 

to discuss the reasons (individual issues such as chronic illness will be handled on an individual 

basis and may not receive a letter.)  

 If students are out due to illness, they are coded as such – parents should contact the school 

nurse and should not send students to school if ill. The nurses have a brochure that includes 

information regarding when students should be kept home due to illness. 

 Communication with the school is important as we are coding more carefully to ensure accurate 

information is reported to the state. 

A endance Commi ee – were the nurses on this commi ee? 

 Yes, the nursing staff was represented on this committee. 

 We are also collecting data about coding in each school so that we have accurate data for the 

state. 

 The committee was formed to make recommendations to the School Committee and it will 

conclude its mission when the policy review is completed.  

 Unexcused absences such as vacations will also be reviewed and discussed.  

 Praise for the messages regarding the importance of attendance at the Elementary Open Houses 

was given.  

How is transporta on going? 

 QMS – the last two weeks have been much better‐ buses arriving before arrival time. 

 HS buses are on time and allowing them to be on time at QMS due to the slight pick‐up time 

adjustment. 

 The only buses that are late at dismissal are the Boys and Girls Club buses at Forest and 

Mulready which are contracted directly with the bus company from the B & G Club‐ HPS does 

not have control over this. There are shorter runs at Quinn and Farley so those buses aren’t 

late. There is adult supervision at all schools provided by the B & G Club until the bus arrives.  

 HHS‐ there is only one late bus with a mini‐bus or two on the runs‐ the timing for drop off 

depends on the number of students taking the late bus. It is usually a 3:30 or so pick up.  

 Transportation emails are being forwarded to Annamarie O’Donnell until a new secretary is 

hired. Concern over timing of responses was addressed.  

 



10/22/2019  parent forum summary  3
 

Are there accountability measures in place according to the bus contract? 

 Dr. Rodrigues met with the New England Vice‐President from First Student and discussed 

challenges and areas for improvement.  Some improvements were made after the first couple of 

weeks and operations are better.  

 The contract contains penalties if bus runs are more than 20 minutes late. 

 We have exercised accountability measures in other areas as well.  

 There are still brand‐new buses arriving that don’t have GPS systems installed.  

 All temporary drivers have been on the job since the first day of school until a permanent driver 

is hired.   

Concern about vaping was iden fied. 

 Parent went to the board of health and discussed need for education about the dangers.  

 A grant from the state is available and it could support for district.  

 Information shared with Health and Wellness Director and Curriculum and Instruction team. 

 The District has been in constant contact with Hudson’s Board of Health and Kelli Calo to work 

on the best ways to educate vaping users and to intervene.  

 We have also been working with the nurses regarding best next steps.  

 Curriculum is being tweaked and updated to include new concerns. 

 Question about current policy regarding vaping was asked. 

 The HS principal discussed the need to educate students to understand the health consequences 

and the educational policy for suspension if students are in possession or found vaping – the 

experience when they return is just as important and they have been working with the 

counselors to target intervention. 

 Teachers need more information about what vaping products look like to help identification.   

 Concerns were raised about some students who worry about going to the bathroom and being 

caught with others who may be vaping – students should not be concerned and the principal 

assured that they will “hold harmless” – important that students feel safe to go to the bathroom 

and to speak with an administrator or staff member. 

 We continue to work with the Board of Health to create support systems through the nurses 

and counselors over concerns that students are going to seek alternatives to the banned 

substances if they are addicted. 

 The HS principal warned against “everyone is doing it”‐ the majority of students are not vaping 

and we should remain careful to report the research accurately and considering how we are 

discussing this with kids to normalize non‐use. 

When will the climate survey be released? 

 The leadership team worked on these this summer and into the fall and have looked at each 

domain to find two indicators from each domain to create action steps‐ work is almost done and 

will be shared with the School Committee along with the surveys. The entire survey results will 

be posted on the District’s website.  

 It is important that all participants recognize that the surveys had a purpose and we are creating 

action steps to address some of the critical areas.   

 The surveys were provided by the US DOE. We could add some questions but not modify the 

original survey‐ psychometrics couldn’t be changed – suggestion made to share this information 

with community. 



10/22/2019  parent forum summary  4
 

Budget Process‐ How is it looking? 

 We are starting the process soon and already have scheduled dates.  

 The stabilization plan is working so far and we are on schedule.  

 We constantly monitor student enrollment which drives our budget numbers‐ predicting a small 

decline over the next few years (i.e. 11th grade has about 140 students (lower enrollment) 

current 12th grade is larger‐ elementary classes – many have around 21 – 24 students per class). 

 Will get official information regarding AMSA and Assabet enrollment in Feb./March – lower 

number of students attending there from Hudson this year as compared with previous years.  

 This summer we had high enrollment of ELs – now have close to 300 ELs in the District with 

multiple registrations over the summer. 

 We still need to grow programmatically and the resources must be re‐allocated.  

 We have settled a number of major budget drivers: food service, transportation, school choice.  

 We shouldn’t experience a budget freeze this year as we shouldn’t have to save for the 

stabilization plan for FY21. 

Are we going to offer openings for School Choice for our SEL programs or Language Programs?  

 Not yet. We will continue to monitor this and make sure we have needs of our own students 

met first.  

What is happening with the ELPAC?  

 This group gained some traction this first year through Padres Comprometidos workshop for 

parents. Sandra Maiuri and Tiago Duarte are running two sessions this year. 

Are the MCAS scores available in Aspen? 

 Not yet. We are looking at the process to get them there. 

Is the Galileo assessment here to stay? It seems like a lot of tes ng at the beginning of the year. 

 Quinn is using this tool for ELA and Math and this gives us information about student progress 

that is different from what we get from MCAS at the end of the year which is too late to inform 

instruction. This has helped us calibrate instruction and we hope to eventually use this in the 

transition years (4th to 5th and 7th to 8th). 

 MS Principal shared the ability of Galileo to address specific standards and give teacher 

formative information to help with instruction. 

 The assessment only takes two scheduled classes of ELA and math for students to complete.  

Will the QMS staff have input about the Jr. Hawk Block and if the schedule is working? 

 The teachers meet weekly to plan for Hawk Block and the curriculum is a work in progress for 

Hawk Block. 

When is Health / Wellness taught at QMS? Elementary? 

 It is part of the PE block taught by both of the PE/Wellness teachers. 

 Health is not taught at the elementary level. 

What is happening with the district website? There is a lot of old informa on that isn’t per nent or 
accurate anymore. 

 We are in the process of creating a new website – we will launch the District Website first and 

then the individual building websites. 



10/22/2019  parent forum summary  5
 

 New website is being created from scratch and only some information is being migrated over to 

the new site. We are dedicating more time to building the new website rather than updating our 

current one.  

 There is an app by School Messenger that will eventually sync with the new website. 

What is Harbor and Pace?  

 Harbor is a new program at the HHS for students with disabilities who needs greater support in 

a more restrictive setting to succeed. Pace is a program at QMS that has replaced the PATH 

program. It mirrors the Bridge program at HHS.  

Why was the rollout of Chromebooks at 5th grade and 9th grade delayed? 

 We have a lease program that is staggered and it influences when new equipment is purchased 

and rotated. Some delivery trickled in during September which contributed to the delay.  

 Budget start date (July 1) and procurements can also delay orders and therefore when 

equipment arrive. 

What is the subs tute teacher situa on at each building? 

 We hired two permanent building subs at each building. We had a few resignations and we are 

interviewing for the two remaining vacancies. The principals articulated the positive aspect of 

having these subs report to their buildings daily.  

 

 

 



Matters for Discussion 
New Business 

2. Leadership Team Communication Plan 



1 
 

 
 

District Leadership Team Communication Plan 
Action Steps 
2019-2020  

 
In order to address the Priority Area 4.1 in the District Improvement Plan that requires the District Leadership Team to Build a strong community 
among all stakeholders, the Team determined that by identifying gaps in communication and developing communication protocols for internal 
and external audiences it would enhance the two-way communication with all stakeholders. The Team developed this communication plan to 
ensure that consistent and accurate communication reach all stakeholders. 
The District Leadership Team followed the guidelines of the School Communication Benchmarking Project developed by the National School 
Public Relations Association (NSPRA) to develop this plan. The Team evaluated its communication practices against the eight areas of 
communication below. 
 

1. Researching and Understanding Employee Needs, Expectations, Opinion, Attitudes, and Knowledge 

Objective: Develop protocols to regularly collect data on employee needs, expectations, opinions, attitudes, and knowledge. 

Goal #1: By June 2020 the District Leadership Team will present results of the protocols used to prioritize employees’ needs, expectations, 
opinions, attitudes, and knowledge. 

Action Step  Source (School/District Leader) 

1. Collect data: 
● Surveys 

● Face-to-face interviews 

● Focus groups 

● Exit interviews  

● HR Director (Exit Interviews) 

● Principals & Curriculum Directors (Face-to-face Interviews) 

● Superintendent & Assistant Superintendent (Listening Sessions) 

● Research and Accountability Specialist  (Focus Groups)  

2. Distribute Minutes following: 
● Meetings (Team Drive) 

o Principals 

o Department/Curriculum 

o District 

o School Wide 

● Principals (Principals’ meetings, staff meetings, ILT meetings) 

● Curriculum Directors (Department meetings) 

● Superintendent & Assistant Superintendent (Principals’ meetings, 

DELTA meetings, Curriculum and Instruction meetings, Cabinet 

meetings) 



2 
 

3. Examine data periodically to develop action steps when 
applicable (DELTA Team) 

● DELTA members  

2. Employee Engagement 

Objective: Develop communication approaches to foster employee engagement in support of student learning. 

Goal #2:  By June 2020, the District Leadership Team will present a system of communication fostering employee engagement in support of 
student learning. 

Action Step  Source (School/District Leader) 

1. Provide opportunities for staff to build relationships across 
buildings  
 

● DELTA Members  

2. Provide opportunities for staff to build shared leadership 
within smaller groups (ILT, IST, CPT) 
 

● Principals and Coaches  

● Curriculum Directors  

3. Develop opportunities for staff to share best practices 
(Genius Hour & Open Studio) 
 

● Curriculum Directors (Genius Hour, Open Studio) 

● Assistant Superintendent (Professional Development) 

3. Employee Alignment with Mission, Vision, and Goals 

Objective: Develop a comprehensive and integrated plan for defining and communicating the mission, vision, and goals with all employees 
and defining employee actions that support the mission. 

Goal #3: By June 2020, the district will have developed a comprehensive and integrated plan for defining and communicating the mission, 
vision, and goals and will have strengthened and/or implemented at least three forms of regularly communicating those to all employees.  

Action Step  Source (School/District Leader) 

1. Improve Creating Connections by:  
● Highlighting everyday best practices in addition to 

special events 

● Highlighting themed activities 1X per month (i.e. Math 

at Quinn) 

● Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent 

● Communications Coordinator  

2. Develop a new Website to include: 
● Features of on-going work  

 

● Technology Director 

● Superintendent  

● DELTA Members  

3. Develop the definition of a “Global Leader”. 
● Define the DIP relationship to creating global leaders 

● DELTA Members 



3 
 

4. Ensure that all school-based meetings consistently discuss: 
● The intersection of the mission and the school 

practices? 

● The role of the ILT as the bridge between Instructional 

Focus and the District mission 

● Principals, Assistant Principals  

● Curriculum Directors  

● Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent  

● DELTA Members  

4. Leadership and Communication 

Objective: Develop common and consistent expectations for leaders’ internal and external communications that are supported by adequate 
resources and training.  

Goal #4: By June 2020, common expectations for school and district leaders’ communication with community, staff, schools, and departments 
will be established and all members of the leadership team will provide evidence of implementing these expectations. 

Action Step  Source (School/District Leader) 

1.  Establish expectations for school leaders’ communication 
with community and staff 

● DELTA Members (Identify Content, Audience, Frequency, and Mode of 

communication by school or department) 

2.  Establish expectations for district leaders’ communication 
with community, staff, schools, departments 

● DELTA Members (Identify Content, Audience, Frequency, and Mode of 

communication by school or department) 

3.  Establish expectations for ILT communication within each 
school 

● Principal and ILT Members (Newsletter, principal’s meeting, CPT) 

5. Managing Information Overload 

Objective: Develop a comprehensive, integrated and aligned plan for information sharing among internal audiences with protocols to 
regularly review the information sharing effectiveness. 

Goal #5: Starting in October 2019, in order to reduce double bookings and improve coordination across the district, all schools will use a 
master calendar of district public events when scheduling their own school events.  Starting in October 2019, on a monthly basis, we will 
survey school scheduling secretaries and school leaders to check for use of the district calendar.  We will aim for 100% alignment according to 
monthly surveys.    

Action Step  Source (School/District Leader) 

,1. Create a master calendar: 
● To include all meetings and events 

● For access by Schools and Departments 

● To prevent event conflicts   

● Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent  

● Executive Assistant to the Superintendent (create master schedule) 

● Technology Director  

● Principals and Curriculum Directors  

2. Provide resources: 
● School Messenger (Training) 

● Technology Director  



4 
 

● Protocol to Submit 

● Google Drive 

● Clarify School Messenger as internal 

● Executive Assistant to the Superintendent  

3. Identify operational protocols: 

 Point person for calendar and communication 

 Protocol Training 

o Ensure the right audience 

o Similar across buildings 

● Executive Assistant to the Superintendent (Point Person) 

● Technology Director and Executive Assistant to the Superintendent  

4. Monitor process: 
● Effectiveness of system 

● DELTA Members 

5. Monitor individual meetings and deadlines 
● Keep personal calendar 

● DELTA Members  

6. Customer Service 

Objective: Develop protocols to regularly review the quality of customer service and relationship families have with schools and district. 

Goal #6: By June 2020, in order to improve family access and relationships, we will use a family survey to identify key areas of need for parent 
communication for each school.  There will be at least 80% participation in the survey at each school.   

Action Step  Source (School/District Leader) 

1. Survey families – DIP Goal# 4 
 

● Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent 

● Research and Accountability Specialist  

2. Access to multi-language information: 
● Website language accessibility  

● Language Line access in all buildings 

● Pamphlets translated (QR Code) 

● Technology Director (Website) 

● Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 

● Parent Liaisons – Portuguese and Spanish  

3. Provide Cultural Competency training for staff (AVC, Anti-
Defamation League) 
 

● Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent  

4. Include financial resources in District budget to support 
action steps 
 

● Superintendent  

● Director of Finance 

● DELTA Members 



5 
 

7. Employee Ambassadors 

Objective: Develop effective means for employee communication to support them in their role as district ambassadors. 

Goal #7:  By the spring of 2020, 100% of the employees will receive consistent communication regarding School Committee meetings, District 
Improvement Plan updates, Awards for Excellence, and events in schools. 

Action Step  Source (School/District Leader) 

1. Dissemination of School Committee meeting highlights to 
staff, via e-mail, after each School Committee meeting 

● Superintendent  

● Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 

2. Reintroduce Creating Connections to all staff, each fall, with 
the purpose and the process to contribute content/ideas 
 

● Superintendent  

● DELTA Members  

3. Continue to hold Awards for Excellence events to recognize 
staff and other stakeholders 
 

● HR Director  

● Superintendent  

4. Promote the District’s Mission, Vision & DIP by connecting all 
media of communication (meetings, PD, written, verbal)  
 

● DELTA Members  

5. Present to all staff, each year, an in-depth overview and 
progress on D.I.P. (by building principals) 
 

● Principals  

8. Communicating with Employees During a Crisis 

Objective: Develop a comprehensive communication plan with procedures and strategies for all district personnel. 

Goal #8:  All HPS employees will receive an emergency communication plan through building principals by December 2019 

Action Step  Source (School/District Leader)  

1. Develop an emergency communication plan in September 
(District’s Emergency Management Committee)  
 

● Director of Facilities  

● EMS Committee  

2. Introduce/Disseminate the EMC’s plan to all employees 
 

● Director of Facilities 

● Principals  

 



Matters for Action 
Old Business 

1. Approval of 2019 MASC Resolutions 



report of the resolutions committee 
The members of t he Reso lut io ns Committee met on June 27, 2019 to co nsider resolut ions p ro posed by member dist ri cts 
and the MASC Boa rd of Directo rs fo r co nsideratio n at the 201 9 Ann ua l Meeting of th e Assoc iati on. Members present were : 
Margaret Hug hes, Narragansett Reg io nal; Denise Hurst, Sp rin g fi e ld/ MASC Secreta ry-Treasurer; Laura Fall o n, No rthamp
to n; Ire ne Fe li ciano-S im s, Ho lyo ke : Mildred Lefebvre, Ho lyo ke/MASC Mino rity Ca ucus Chair; Barbara Davis, Ho lbrook; Kim 
Hunt, Plym o uth; W endy Rua, Ag awam ; Bill Fo nseca, East Lo ngmea d ow/MASC Di visio n V Chair; Deni se Schultz, Franklin; 
Jake Oliveira, Ludl o w/ MASC Pres ident-Em eritu s; Beve rl y Hugo, Framing ham/ MA SC Past President; Paul Schli chtma n, 
Arlin g ton/ MASC Past Pres ident; Devin Sheehan, Ho lyoke/MASC President; Deborah Davis, Northeast Metro Voe. Tech./ 
MASC Pres ident -El ect and Chair of th e Reso luti o ns Com mittee 

Th e foll owing resoluti o ns were m oved forward by the Resoluti o ns Committee and approved by th e Bo ard of Direct o rs. 

RESOLUTION 1: Banning Polystyrene from Schools 
(Submitted by th e Silver Lake Regional School District, in 
clud ing the School Committees of Kingston, Plympton, and 
Halifax) 

WHEREAS: Th e United States Department of Education 
Green Ribbo n Schools was created in 2011 t o recognize 
schools efforts to red uce environmental im pact and cost, 
improve t he hea lth and we llness of schools stud ents, and 
staff, and p rovide effecti ve enviro nmental and sustainability 
educatio n; and 

WHEREAS The Commonwea lth of M assachusetts in con
junctio n w ith t wenty other states jo ined togeth er to form the 
United States Climate A lli ance to suppo rt the Paris Agree
ment and th ro ug h co ntinued legi slative and executive ac
ti ons has dem o nstrated the Commo nwea lth's commitment 
to environ mental protection; and 

WHEREAS: Exp anded po lystyrene foam manufacturing 
p rocess re leases pollutio n into the atmosph e re, expanded 
polystyrene foa m has been shown to be non-biod egrad 
able and has the ab ility to be pers istent in the enviro nment 
for tho usa nds of yea rs, expanded po lystyrene foam breaks 
d own into "pearl s" w hi ch are often ingested by marine life 
and introduced into the food chain; and 

WHEREAS : Expa nded polystyrene foam is mad e w ith 
styrene, a chemica l th e Depa rtment of Hea lth and Human 
Se rvices has deemed as reaso nab ly antic ipated to be a 
human ca rcinoge n, and t he use of expa nded polystyrene 
foam in food and beve rage co ntainers, especially contain 
ers ho lding hot o r acidic food, have bee n shown to leach 
styre ne into food and beverages; 

THEREFO RE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: MASC urge the Com
mo nwea lth of Massachusetts to ban the use of expanded 
polystyrene foa m cups, bowls, p lates and t rays fro m Massa
chusetts Pu b li c Schoo ls by the 2022 -2023 schoo l year. 

RATI O NA LE Propo nents cite t he p resence of tox ins, includ 
ing ca rcinoge ns in po lysty rene and note th at co ntainers 
manufactured w it h thi s substance ca n be fo und in food and 
beverage containers that mig ht pose a r isk to students and 
others. 

RESOLUTION 2: Pertaining to Educator Diversity and Pro
fessional Licensure 
(Submitted by the A rlington School Committee) 

WHEREAS: Current resea rch clea rl y d emonstrates that pub
li c schoo l stud ents benefit from a d ive rse teaching staff; and 

WHEREAS: Massachusetts distri cts are chall enged to attract 
a d ive rse teaching staff; and 

WHEREAS: Attr·acting d ive rse ca ndidates often invo lves 
recruit ing ca nd idates fro m o utside Massachusetts; and 

WH EREAS: Massachusetts li censure requirements, incl ud 
ing t he Massachusetts Tests fo r Ed ucato r Li censure (MTEL) 
requirements, se rve as a disince ntive fo r candid ates looking 
to re locate to take a teaching positio n; and 

WHEREAS : Test ad ministratio n is co nducted in ce nte rs that 
are often inaccessib le w itho ut a ca r; and 

WHEREAS: The cost of t esting ca n be a ba rrier to potenti al 
appli ca nts; and 

WHEREAS: There is no ev idence t he MTEL is a re li abl e o r 
va li d measure of successful practi ce as an educato r; and 

WHEREAS: School d istr icts are capa bl e of se lecting qual 
ifi ed ca nd idates for teaching positio ns, as well as super
vising, eva luating, and decid ing o n whether t o reta in the 
services of pro batio nary candid ates; and 

WHEREAS : The Boa rd of El ementary and Secondary Educa 
t io n governs educato r li ce nsu re in Massachusetts; and 

WHER EAS: Practi cing educators and schoo l committee 
members are p ro hi b ited fro m se rving o n the Boa rd of El e
menta ry and Secondary Ed ucatio n; and 

WHEREAS: The t eaching profession is the o nly p rofess ion 
o r trade in Massachusetts w here t he ho lders of a lice nse are 
p rohibited fro m se rving on its governing boa rd ; 

THEREFO RE BE IT RESOLVED: that the Massachusetts As
sociatio n of Schoo l Committees ca ll s fo r the e limination of 
the MTEL and t he MA Perfo rma nce Assessment fo r Lead ers 
(Ma PA L) as lice nsing req uirements fo r educato rs; and 

Delegate Ma nual 2019 I page 26 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the Massachusetts Associ 
ation of Schoo l Committees ca ll s for the governance and 
licensure of profess iona l educators to be vested in a board 
comprised of licensed educators. 

RATIONALE: The licensure of Massachusetts educators 
is governed by the Board of Elementary and Secondary 
Education. The overs ight of licensure by non-educators has 
resu lted in a comp lex, difficult li censure system that discour
ages qua lified cand idates from app lying for licensure and 
emp loyment in Massachusetts. Recruiting a diverse, qua li 
fied cohort of new ed ucators wi ll be enhanced if t he barriers 
presented by MTEL are removed, and if li censure regula 
tions and standards are placed in the hands of a comm ittee 
of educators. An expanded exp lanation in support of this 
resolution can be found on the MASC web site. 

RESOLUTION 3: School Transportation 
(Submitted by the Hudson School Committee and revised by 
the Resolutions Committee) 

WHEREAS: Among the transportation cost concerns for 
schoo l districts is the lack of competit ion for bus contracts 
for regular day ("yellow bus") se rvices, as we ll as costs for 
special education transportation; and 

WHEREAS: Competiti on for transportation contracts has 
decreased over the years; and 

WHEREAS: Th e transportation industry has been contracting 
and now has fewer competitors; and 

WHEREAS: M .G.L. c. 71, § 7C prohibits certa in uses of 
reg iona l transportation authorities to provide schoo l district 
transportation serv ices, and 

WHEREAS: M.G.I. c. 30B § 5 requires acceptance of the 
lowest cost bid; and 

WHEREAS: Other factors beyond cost, such as past perfor
mance, cannot be cons ide red when accepting a bid; and 

WHEREAS: Many sma ller d istricts on ly receive 1 bid when 
soli cit ing transportation contract proposals; and 

WHEREAS: No action on this subject has been taken to 
increase competition; and 

WHEREAS: Elimination of M.G.L. c. 71, § 7C wou ld free the 
school districts and Regional Transportation Authorities to 
co ll aborate on plans to provide safe and effi cient transporta 
tion alternatives that lessen the financial im pact on both the 
districts and the Commonwealth, and 

WHEREAS: The lack of b idders on schoo l transportation 
contracts requires a deeper ana lys is by the appropriate state 
officia ls; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: In o rd er to promote 
greater competition for bus serv ice contracts and im prove 
performance, MASC ca ll s for the creation of a work ing 
group to advise the Leg islature on the best so lutions to 
support greater competit ion and higher performance from 
transportation compan ies. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLOVED THAT: In order to promote 
greater competit ion for bus serv ice contracts, the Legisla 
ture shou ld e liminate M.G.L. c. 71, § 7C, and authorize a 
deeper ana lys is into the lack of bidders on schoo l transpor
tation contracts. 

RATIONALE: Add itiona l information can be found on the 
MASC web site. 

RESOLUTION 4 : Climate Change 
(Proposed by the Resolutions Committee) 

WHEREAS: We believe America is a great nation and has 
a proud heritage of addressing humanity's most press ing 
prob lems; 

WHEREAS: We believe it is important to advocate for 
climate action lead ing to climate restoration to curtai l one 
of the greatest threats facing commun ities throughout the 
world; and, 

WHEREAS: We believe that climate change is not a partisan 
issue and that loca l, state, and national policies shou ld be 
guided by the best ava ilab le science; and, 

WHEREAS: There is a broad scient ifi c consensus among cli 
mate scientists that human act ivit ies, contributing to increas
es in greenhouse gas em iss ions, are the dominant cause of 
climate change; 

WHEREAS: Ch ildren represent a particularly vu lnerab le 
group because greenhouse gases emitted into the at
mosphere wi ll continue to accumu late over the com ing 
decades and w ill profoundly impact our current students 
throughout their lives, as we ll as the lives of future genera 
tions; and, 

WHEREAS: MASC recognizes c limate change as a genera
tional justice and human rights issue; and, 

WHEREAS: Climate change is a socia l justice and equity 
issue. While climate change impacts all people and dispro
portionately impacts all young peop le and future gener
ations, it d isproportionate ly affects people of color and 
peop le in poverty, thereby exacerbating exist ing inequ ities 
and limit ing equa lity of opportunity wh ich is a foundat iona l 
aspiration for modern America; 

W HEREAS: The globa l impact, urgency, and magnitude of 
the cha ll enge of addressing climate change ca lls for lead 
ersh ip in all sectors of society, all institutions and all elected 
leaders; and, 

Delegate Manual 2019 I page 27 



WHEREAS: Nationa l and state e lected leaders wo rking in 
a bipartisa n fash ion to enact ca rbo n pricing po licies co uld 
qu ickly and substa ntia lly red uce human-made greenho use 
gas em iss io ns; and, 

WHEREAS: MASC recogn izes and understands the signifi 
ca nt negative impact that rapid and o ngo ing climate change 
has o n America's schoo ls, stud ents, and th eir commun it ies. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: MASC ca lls o n Con
gress to take swift and effective act io n o n cl imate change to 
protect cu rrent and future students. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: MASC advocates for 
funding for school infrastructure need and emergency fund 
ing for d isaster relief ca used by natural catastrophes and 
extreme weather events. 

RATIONALE: This reso lution represents a ca ll by advocates 
for action o n climate change at th e federal leve l and for 
state funding to anticipate the clim ato log ica l implicatio ns 
and the emergencies they might ca use. 

RESOLUTION 5: Full Funding of Transportation Costs for 
Students in Foster Care And State Care 
(Sub mitted by the MASC Board of Directors) 

W HEREAS: FY18 was the f irst year Massachusetts added th e 
category of transportation for foster children educated in 
the schoo l or district of origin and subject to transportation 
to its repo rting of education expenses by di strict, and th e 
repo rted tota l was over $3 .2 m il li on; and 

WHEREAS: Federa l and state law requ ire the abi lity for stu
d ents in foster or state care to stay not just in their d istricts 
of orig in but also in the ir schools of o rig in; and 

WHEREAS: The nature of foster ca re and state ca re p lace
ments has changed sign ifi cantly w ith in the past severa l 
d eca des; and 

WHEREAS: School distri ct s d o not have contro l over wheth 
er a foster ca re student is p laced into o r removed from th e 
district ; and 

WHEREAS : Section 7 of Chapter 7 6 of the Massachusetts 
Genera l Laws, estab lished over a ce ntury ago, obligates the 
Commonwea lth to reimburse districts for th e cost of ed ucat
ing stud ents in foster care and state ca re; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: the Commonwea lth 
should fu lly re imburse transpo rtatio n funding for chi ldren 
in foster ca re and state care . DCF an d DESE mu st com 
plete the process to provid e proper d ocumentati on for the 
Commonwealth to receive re imbursement for transportation 
expenses under Title IV-E of the Social Secu rity Act. 

BE IT FURTHER RESO LVED THAT: MASC advocate th e 
Massachu setts Genera l Court to properly ca lculate and 
assume th e fu ll expense of providing ed ucati o na l services to 

students in foster ca re and state care includ ing the costs of 
assessments, reg ular d ay and special ed ucatio n se rvices as 
we ll as out-of-district placements, transportatio n and menta l 
hea lth serv ices. 

RATIONALE: Beca use the foster care popu lation is fluid , it 
is difficult for a school district to budget properly for un
expected transportation costs of students in foster ca re o r 
state custody. Direct and fu ll fund ing of transportatio n wi ll 
remedy these prob lems whi le eq uitably and accurate ly all o 
cat ing costs. The State Audito r notes the Commonwealth's 
failure to provid e funding for the transportation of foster 
ca re students may b e an unfunded mandate under the Loca l 
Mandate Law, G.L. c. 29, § 27c. Th is is a similar situation 
to that of the McKinney Vento find ing by Aud itor Bump in 
2011-20 12. As the requirement is t ied to fed eral fund ing 
unde r Tit le I, the need to provide transit to th ese stud ents 
mea ns th is cou ld potentia lly be a requirement passed by 
th e state to loca l d istricts w ithout offsetting funding . Massa 
chusetts rece ived over $220 mi ll io n in Tit le I, Part A grants in 
each of the f isca l years 2016, 2017, and 20 18. 

Wh ile the reimbursem ent on ly offers a po rti on of the funds 
expended, it could help offset some of th e expenses in
curred by school d istricts to comply with state and federal 
laws. We app laud DCF and DESE for th e effo rt underway to 
modify the federal plan t o al low for re imbursement to Mas
sachusetts for expenses incurred by schoo l districts. 

This reso lution exp lic itly recog nizes that "education expens
es" include all education-re lated costs associated with the 
imposit ion of federal requirements and the decision-making 
of the Department of Chi ldren and Fam ilies (DCF) regarding 
each foster child's res idential situation . Direct state funding 
of these services w il l al low for a more accurate allocatio n 
of funds to affected communities. Funding from the state 
wi ll also lessen the adm inistrative t ime lost by ce ntral offi ce 
staff trying to determ ine the district financially respo nsib le 
for each student and seeking re imbursements after the fact. 
Estimated tota l costs less the est imated existing paym ents 
wou ld net to approx imate ly $56 mi ll ion annua ll y. More 
accurate data on student p lacements wou ld sharpen th is 
estim ate. 

RESOLUTION 6 : Universal Quality Pre-Kindergarten Access 
in Massachusetts 
(NOTE: This Resolution is a reaffirmation of a 2014 Resolu
tion, submitted by the Framingham School Com mittee) 

W HEREAS: In Massachu setts as many as four o ut of t en 
students lack access to a formal, ea rly education and ca re 
prog ram; and 

WHEREAS: Advocates have cited as many as 25,000 low 
income children are in need of fin ancial assistance fo r ea rly 
educati on and ca re; and 

WHEREAS: Low income students w ho partic ipat e in qua lity 
early educatio n and care programs are 40% less like ly to 
be he ld back a grade o r need Special Edu catio n, and 30% 

Delegate Ma nual 2019 I page 28 



more li ke ly to grad uate hig h school twice as like ly to attend 
co ll ege; and 

WHEREAS : Better language, social and behavio ral skill s are 
obta ined by attending a quality p re-schoo l; and 

WHEREAS: Children that attend p re-schoo ls are shown to 
demonstrate t angible life long results for future success; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: MASC fil e or support 
leg islation that wil l provid e a suffi cient appropriation for 
universa l pre-Kin Massachusetts and wi ll achieve the actions 
necessa ry to provide access to good, qua lity universa l pre-K 
for all children in Massachusetts. 

RATIONALE: This reso lutio n would help ensu re that o ur 
underserved population of 3 and 4-yea r-o lds will be pro
vided w ith th e supports and se rvices necessa ry for schoo l 
rea diness and lasting success in the classroom and for 
future success. Knowing that these strateg ies are d ocument
ed in increas ing student success, o ur resolutio n w ill level the 
play ing fie ld by help ing to ensure equity and beginning the 
process of clos ing th e achievement gap for thi s vulnerab le 
co ho rt of children. 

RESOLUTION 7: Poverty and Children 
(Note: This Resolution is a rea ffirmation of a 20 15 Resolu
tion. Submitted by the Framingham Schoo l Committee. ) 

WHEREAS: One third of the children in Massachusetts are 
li ving in or nea r poverty; and 

WHEREAS: Th e peri ls of poverty include putting student s 
and families at risk for hea lth, soc ial and emoti onal and edu
catio nal disadvantage; and 

WHEREAS: Students in poverty and at social and emotio nal 
ri sk face o bstacles and impedi ments to their success that 
other students do not confro nt; and 

WHEREAS : Th ere is a direct lin k between poverty and 
student and district academic pe rforman ce, demanding our 
attention and o ur d ili gent efforts to address them; and 

WHEREAS: The erad icat io n of poverty among children is es
senti al to generating a strong economy and vibra nt society; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Massachusetts 
Associat io n of Schoo l Committee w ill prioritize, as a matter 
of its pub lic po li cy agenda, and fil e for and support leg isla
tion to suppo rt the eradi catio n of poverty amo ng children in 
Massachusetts and advocate for soc ial and economic justice 
for students and their famili es that w ill include: 

• Support for a revenue stream that supports soc ial and 
econom ic pr io ri ties for child re n and fami li es. 

• Support for state program and se rvices that se rve child ren 
at g reatest social and emotional ri sk wh ich are easily acces
sible to students and fami li es . 

• Advocacy for nutrit ion p rogra ms that erad icate hunger 
among child ren . 

• Advocacy for hea lthca re inc lud ing vision, hea ring, dental 
and mental hea lth thro ugh accessib le serv ice providers. 

• Support for pre-kind e rgarten programs for all children. 

• Advocacy for increasing educationa l oppo rtuniti es for 
children to grow both inside and o utside of schoo l. 

RATIONALE: This reso lution wou ld help ensure that our 
underserved population of school children wi ll be provided 
with the supports and services necessa ry for lasting success 
in the class room and in their fu ture. Knowing that by e lim 
inating the ra vages of poverty, these strateg ies have been 
proven to increase positive student outcomes, t his reso lu
tion w ill leve l the playing fi e ld by helping to ensure eq uity 
and to close the achievement gap for this vulnerabl e co ho rt 
of children. 

RESOLUTION 8: Resolution for Access to Menstrual 
Supplies 
(Submitted by the MASC Resolutions Committee) 

WHEREAS: Schoo ls have an ob ligation to serve all students 
equitab ly. Every student deserves the reassurance that th eir 
schoo l restroom s are outfitted with necessities to accom
modate their bio log ica l needs. Yet, for roughly half the US 
student popu lation, the re is a g laring exception t o this co m
mitment: menstru al hygiene products; and 

WHEREAS : Menstrua l hygiene prod uct s are basic neces
sities, and th e inabili ty to access them affects a student's 
freed o m to study, be hea lthy, and participate in soc iety with 
dignity. Studies have shown that when students lack access 
to menstrual hyg iene prod ucts they sk ip or miss c lass, face 
embarrassment o r objectifi cation because of period stains, 
and are limited both academica lly and socia ll y; and 

WHEREAS: Access to m enstrua l products co uld be cost pro
hibitive to many students and menstruating us not a luxury 
but a biolog ical p rocess that necess itates the use of costly 
p roducts; and 

WHEREAS: No student should miss a day of school because 
they fee l asham ed o r they do not have access to menstrua l 
products; and 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: MASC work with state 
and federal leg islatures t o provide add itional funding to 
provide free access to menstrual products from th e school 
nurse and in restrooms and locker roo ms. 

RATIONAL: Proponents asse rt that menstrual suppli es are 
basic necessities w hich some students may not have on 
hand in schoo l at any particular moment o r may not be ab le 
to affo rd in general. They view these items, simil ar to other 
p roducts fou nd in nurses' offi ces or in restrooms, as basic, 
essential commod ities for eve ryday use that sho uld be ava il 
able to all students w ithout charge. 

Delegate Ma nu al 2019 I page 29 



RESOLUTION 9: Charter School Reform 
(Submitted by the MASC Board of Directors) 

WHEREAS: In many cit ies and towns, Commonwealth char
ter schoo ls are imposed upon comm uniti es o r subject to 
expansion over their objections, without loca l representative 
overs ight, and without regard to the impact such a charter 
school wo uld have on the education of children in the pub
li c schoo ls; and 

WHEREAS: Charter schoo ls are always fully funded by the 
sendi ng districts enro lling students there while the charte r 
schoo l mitigation fund is subject to appropriation and has 
not been fully funded in years; and 

WHEREAS: Charter schoo ls may retain up to 20 percent of 
their operating budget and cap ital costs in reserve fund s, 
regional schoo ls may reta in on ly 5 percent of any surplus 
funds in reserve, while district schools must return 100 per
cent of any unspent funds to their municipality; and 

WHEREAS: Without substantial reform of Commonwea lth 
charter schoo l financing, recruitment of students, equ itable 
charter schoo l enro llment of representative segments of the 
population of econom ica lly disadvantaged, special edu 
cation, and disabled students remediation of the adverse 
impact of charter schools cannot be addressed; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: the Massachusetts 
Association of Schoo l Comm ittees seek leg islative action 
to both address the deleterious effects of charter school 
funding on certa in municipalities and schoo l districts across 
the state and approve a compre hensive set of refo rms that 
includes: 

1. Establishment of strict guide lines o r reg ulations to requ ire 
that charter schoo ls enro ll representative cross sections of 
students residing within the school service areas. 

2. Reporting of accurate numbers of students who leave 
charter schools to return to the send ing districts or district of 
residence . 

3. Requiring the MA Department of El ementary and Second 
ary Education to retain and report accurate data on enro ll 
ment of students with learn ing disabilities, 
physical disabilities, econom ic disadvantage, emotiona l 
disability and status as racial and linguistic minorities. 

4. State requirements that all charter schoo ls be funded in 
full by the Commonwea lth rather than by expropriation of 
Chapter 70 education aid from the send ing citi es, towns and 
regions. 

5. State funding in full of any mitigation funds created to 
offset the loss of state funding for students who become 
students in charter schools. 

RATIONAL: This resolution addresses several areas where 
charter school criti cs note that school districts are disadvan
taged by current policy. Among these issues are failure to 
recruit and retain a fair proportion of students at risk, English 
Language Learners, or clients of special educatio n serv ices. 
The reso lution also recommends that charte r schoo ls shou ld 
be funded as a discrete budget line item rather than by hav
ing send ing district Chapter 70 funding diverted to charter 
schools and that the current mitigation program to offset 
temporary losses of district funds be fully funded. 

Critics of thi s resolution may argue that "the money follows 
the child" and that charter schools represent cho ices for 
parents and students. Th ey might also cite efforts by some 
charter schools to recru it students at risk. 

proposal to amend the masc by-laws 
The Board of Directors of the Association has recommend
ed to members that the by-laws of the Association be 
amended as follows: 
It is proposed that Article VII (Election of Officers), subsec
tion 2 (Nominating Comm ittee) be updated to reflect the 
add ition of the Minority Caucus representative o n the Board 
of Directors and as a representative on the Nominating 
Committee . 

Current language reads as follows: 
A Nom inating Comm ittee of ten persons sha ll be appo inted 
by the President with the advice and consent of the Board of 
Directors, o n o r before May 1 of each year. One of such per
sons shall be a past President, who sha ll serve as Chairman 
of the Nom inating Committee, four sha ll be Division Office rs 
and five shall be members of schoo l committees whi ch are 

active members of the Association. The four Division officers 
and the five others sha ll be so appo inted that each Division 
of the Association is represented. 

Proposed language reads as follows (new language in 
bold face) 
A Nominating Comm ittee of ten persons shall be appointed 
by the President w ith the advice and consent of the Board of 
Directors, on or before May 1 of each year. A Past President 
shall serve as a non-voting chair of the committee. Five 
members sha ll be Division Officers and five sha ll be mem
be rs of schoo l committees which are active members of the 
Association. The five Division officers and the five others 
shall be so appointed that each Division of the Assoc iation is 
represented. 

Delegate Manual 2019 I page 30 



Matters for Action 
New Business 

1. Approval of Contract with New England 
School Services, Inc. in the amount of 
$13,660.00 for contracted services for removal 
and replacement of outside double- door, 
frame, and transom at the Farley Elementary 
School. 
 



















Matters for Action 
New Business 

2. Approval of Contract with the Madison 
Corporation – DBAWarren Security  in the 
amount of  $44,500  to upgrade the Door 
Access Control Security System at Hudson 
High School 





































Matters for Action 
New Business 

3. Approval of Contract with Signet Security 
Systems  Inc. in the amount of $19,250.00 for 
equipment and installation of  additional 
security cameras at Quinn Middle School. 
 

























Matters for Action 
New Business 

4. Approval of FY20 Mass Cultural Grant in the 
amount of $250.00 for Forest Avenue 
Elementary and $250.00 for Quinn Middle 
School. 








	Leadership Team Communication Plan Action Steps 9-19.docx
	SC Packet 102219
	Farley SIP10182019
	SC Packet 102219
	Quinn SIP 101819
	SC Packet 102219
	SC Agenda  October 22, 2019
	Approval of Minutes
	SC Minutes  October 8, 2019
	Report of the Superintendent Divider
	Farley SIP10182019
	Forest SIP 101819
	Mulready SIP 101819
	Quinn SIP 101819
	HHS SIP 101819
	Discussion 1 new
	Staff Listening Session Summary 10-22-19
	Parent Forum Summary 10-22-19
	Discussion 2 new
	Leadership Team Communication Plan Action Steps 9-19
	Actiontotal
	Action 1 Old
	MASC_Resolutions-Report_2019
	Action 1 New
	New England School Services
	Action 2 New
	Warren Security
	Action 3 New
	Signet
	Action 4 New
	Mass Cultural Grant







